
Town of Camden 
Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

Camden Municipal Building 
March 17, 2021  

  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairwoman Gray led attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Chairwoman Gray called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and noticed that this regular Planning 
Commission Meeting is being held in compliance with Delaware Open Public Meeting Act by 
posting the agenda on March 10, 2021, in the following manner: 

• The official bulletin boards, 
• Posted on the official electronic sign, and 
• Posted on the official website. 

 
Members Attending: Chairwoman Gray, Commissioner Johnson, Commissioner Wanstall and 
Commissioner Schock. 
 
Members absent: Commissioner Adam Colaprete 
 
Staff Attending:  Town Clerk Sarah Cahall, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Harold Scott, 
and Town Manager Jason Stewart 
 
MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Johnson, seconded by Commissioner Schock,  to approve 
the minutes as written from the December 16, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting.  All in favor; 
none opposed. 
 
ADMENDMENT 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Johnson, and seconded by Commissioner Schock, to remove 
item B on the agenda 4044 Dupont Hwy, Tax No. 7-02.094.00.01.25.00.00, Chick-Fil-A 
application, submitted preliminary site plans for renovations. All in favor; none opposed. 
 
Roll Call: 
Chairwoman Gray 
Commissioner Johnson 
Commissioner Schock 
Commissioner Wanstall 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 



Town of Camden                     Regular Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, March 17, 2021 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Tallman Dr, Tax map No. NM 7-02-103.00-01-03.00-000 & NM 7-02-103.00-01-04.00-000, Sunset Village.  The 
applicant is requesting a one-year extension on a preliminary site plan.   
 
Phil Tolliver from Morris & Richie explained that he was here to request a one-year extension 
on the preliminary site plan for Sunset Village. He added that over the last 12 months they have 
received almost all the approvals except for CWSWA. He stated that over the last year 
CWSWA has been extremely difficult to deal with. He said they have Del-Dot approval for the 
entrance plans, Del-Dot approval for the record plat, Del-Dot agreement signed by The Town of 
Camden that was sent to Mayor Torres, Jason Stewart, and the developer. He added the other 
approvals are DNREC, Heath Department, FEMA, Town of Camden Engineer, and KCD.  
 
Mr. Tolliver said they submitted the construction plans to CWSWA in October and they still 
have not received comments from Soheil Gharebaghi. They requested to be on the agenda for 
Board of Directors back in January. He added the day before the meeting Mr. Gharebaghi called 
him and said he did not need to attend the meeting because he would have comments to him in 
the next few days. Mr. Tolliver stated he cancelled the meeting for Board of Directors and weeks 
and months went by without any comments. Mr. Tolliver said the next meeting with the Board 
of Directors is April 13, 2021 and they made a request to be on the agenda. He expressed his 
frustration and ongoing situation with CWSWA. He added that they are diligently working on 
this project and trying to get the plans approved by CWSWA so he can then present the final 
plat to the Town. Mr. Tolliver stated that he has all the approvals needed to present the record 
plat to the Planning Commission and if it were not for the 5–6-month delay created by 
CWSWA they would not need the extension.  
 
Mr. Tolliver said the CWSWA fees are outrageous, and they are dealing with that as well. He 
said that for them to submit the application for the project is $129,000.00 just to review the set 
of plans. He said Kent County DPW would roughly $1,100.00 to review.  
 
 
He requested for a one-year extension with the original preliminary plan approval which was 
dated April 10, 2013. With the 11 Conditions being a part of the extension that was originally put 
on the plans. 
 
Commissioner Shock stated that last year she remembers asking if they will be here again 
requesting another extension a year later. She added that she understands his frustration with 
CWSWA however it has been 12 months and she requested to regroup and start fresh with this 
project. 
 
Commissioner Wanstall questioned which 11 conditions have been checked off and is there a 
builder or contractor to start this project. 
 
Mr. Tolliver stated that the plan or codes have not changed, and they have every approval 
necessary expect for CWSWA. He added that it is CWSWA penalizing them, and they 



Town of Camden                     Regular Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, March 17, 2021 
 
submitted their plans 5-6 months ago and have been sitting idol waiting for Soheil Gharebaghi 
to get them comments. He added that is out of their control and if it were not for him holding 
the project up, they would not need an extension and they would likely be under construction. 
 
Chairwoman Gray asked Mr. Stewart if he had any additional comments or thoughts towards 
the CWSWA. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated that the involvement with CWSWA, Mr. Tolliver and his client as the Town 
he tries to strictly adhere to the policies and expiration dates on documents that are needed. The 
Town tries to stay out of the middle of any back and forth. He added the Town is neutral and 
has maintained this project by policy and all projects across the board. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that Mr. Tolliver and his client will have to submit any documents that have 
been expired and need to be updated before moving forward. 
 
Chairwoman Gray asked Mr. Stewart if any documents were expired. 
 
Mrs. Cahall Stated that the KCD approval letter expired on January 1, 2020 since no work has 
been commenced. She also asked Mr. Tolliver for an updated land use application for the 
preliminary process. 
 
Mr. Tolliver stated whatever documents are needed he can provide them. 
 
Chairwoman Gray stated that she finds it hard to believe that this project is ever going to move 
forward. She asked Mr. Tolliver what assurance they do have going forward. 
 
Mr. Tolliver stated he did not know how to answer that. He questioned Chairwoman Gray if she 
was asking him for assurance to go to construction. 
 
Chairwoman Gray reiterated to Mr. Tolliver she hopes this project is moving forward, and they 
will not be here next year. 
 
Mr. Tolliver said that if they are here next year there are major issues with CWSWA and are 
entangled in some sort of a lawsuit at that point.  
 
Chairwoman Gary asked why last year he needed an extension. 
 
Mr. Tolliver stated that it was to finalize the engineering process, working with Del-Dot, and 
having a letter of agreement signed by Mayor Torres and Jason Stewart.  He stated that there is a 
bank involved, a developer, and architectural plans are being developed. They are ready to move 
forward but CWSWA is creating a delay. He said they are on their agenda for April 13, 2021 to 
discuss this matter with the CWSWA Board. 
 
Commissioner Schock asked Mr. Tolliver that, provided with the meeting at CWSWA on April 
13, 2021, he references the fees are absorbent. Commissioner Schock said the fees are what they 
are with CWSWA. If the meeting is successful is his client prepared to move forward with those 
fees? 



Town of Camden                     Regular Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, March 17, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Tolliver said he cannot answer that. 
 
Mr. Harold Scott Jr spoke with the superintendent at CWSWA, and he provided Town Hall a 
letter with no objections to the project. As far as fees go that is like negotiation with Delmarva 
Power, the Town does not get involved in that.  
 
Chairwoman Gray asked Mr. Stewart if what we need is the approval from CWSWA for the 
project. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that we need that letter of intent from CWSWA, that they will move forward 
with the project. 
 
Commissioner Schock asked Mrs. Cahall is their any other concerns that have not been 
addressed. 
 
Mrs. Cahall asked Mr. Tolliver if by any chance is this project going to change hands. 
 
Mr. Tolliver said he did not know and there could be a chance his client could sell it to another 
developer.  
 
Chairwoman Gray explained that there were several conditions that were put on the plans with 
the report: A motion was made by Commissioner Johnson and seconded by Commissioner 
Wanstall to approve the one-year extension on the preliminary site plan with the following 
Conditions as recorded as of last January 15, 2020, stipulations from CWSWA, and any other 
documentation that has expired in the last year. Motion carried. All in favor; none opposed. 
 

1. Report from DNREC regarding the wetlands required. 
2. Note or an overlay of the FEMA flood plain map required. 
3. Landscape plan brought up to code and stamped by a landscape architect. 
4. Open space amenities per section 240-36b and 240-36c must be provided and 

approved. 
5. Architectural visuals of the building must be submitted. 
6. Description of the building materials must be submitted. 
7. A community impact study pursuant to section 240-11 must be completed. 
8. Environmental impact study must be completed. 
9. Signage plans must be submitted. 
10. Note page(s) of submitted plans must be updated indicating the community shall 

be a lease community, and 
11. Phase-in schedule required. 

 
Roll Call: 
Chairwoman Gray  
Commissioner Johnson 
Commissioner Wanstall 
Commissioner Schock 

 



Town of Camden                     Regular Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, March 17, 2021 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 7:45 p.m. a motion was made by Commissioner Schock, seconded by Commissioner Wanstall, 
to adjourn the regular meeting.  All in favor; none opposed.   
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
Sarah Cahall, Town Clerk  


